


 

 

 
Christiansburg Planning Commission 

 Minutes of March 11, 2013 
 
Present: Ann H. Carter  
  Harry Collins  
  M. H. Dorsett, AICP 
  David Franusich 
  Jonathan Hedrick 
  Steve Huppert 
  Craig Moore, Chairperson 
  Ashley Parsons 
  Joe Powers, Vice-Chairperson 
  Nichole Hair, Secretary Non-Voting 
 
Absent: Jennifer D. Sowers 
        
Staff/Visitors: Kali Casper, staff 

 Missy Martin, staff 
 Cindy Disney, Montgomery County Planning Commission Liaison 
 Two Virginia Tech students 
   

Chairperson Moore called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Christiansburg Town 
Hall at 100 E. Main Street, Christiansburg, Virginia to discuss the following items: 
 
Public Comment. 
  

Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment.  No public comments were 
made.  Chairperson Moore closed the floor for public comment.   
 

Approval of meeting minutes for February 25, 2013. 
 
Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion. Commissioner Parsons made a 
motion to approve the February 25, 2013 Planning Commission meeting minutes.  
Commissioner Carter seconded the motion which passed 7-0, with Commissioner 
Collins abstaining. 

 
Review of sidewalk requirements in B-3. 
 

Chairperson Moore opened the discussion. Ms. Hair noted she edited the draft to 
include all business zoned districts. The sidewalk requirement for the area on 
Cambria Street near the Huckleberry Trail extension was brought to Ms. Hair’s 
attention by administration. Ms. Hair stated the properties were zoned B-1 and B-3. 
Ms. Hair explained the draft ordinance would allow for trails in lieu of sidewalks for 
the business zoned districts at the Town Manager’s discretion. She added the 
specific location is the area from the corner of Cambria Street and Providence Blvd, 
which is zoned B-1, and from Cub Circle to the rear of the Recreation Center, which 
is zoned B-3.  Commissioner Powers asked for location on the map and Ms. Casper 
verified location.  



March 11, 2013 Page 4 

 

Review of sidewalk requirements in B-3 – (continued). 
 
Ms. Hair indicated there is an existing trail system at 1690 Forelmont Street which 
goes to the Recreation Center. She stated the ordinance is under consideration to 
make it more agreeable to the land owner and for the aesthetics so there is not a 
trail and sidewalk on the same property. Ms. Hair added the mixed use and 
residential districts have the option of trails or sidewalks so it would carry over nicely 
into the business districts.  Ms. Hair stated the Development Subcommittee met last 
month to discuss it and seemed agreeable with it. Ms. Hair has drafted a proposed 
ordinance that will go to public hearing at the next meeting. She wanted to bring it to 
the Commissioners for discussion and to consider changes.  
 
Commissioner Franusich asked if the only changes made were to allow for a multi-
use trail. Ms. Hair responded yes in lieu of sidewalks, a paved multi-use trail, a 
minimum of ten (10) feet in width, connecting to the street right-of-way adjoining 
other properties and to each lot within the development, by a hard surface 
connection with Town Manager approval. She noted the same wording was used in 
MU-1 and MU-2 and is being added to B-1, B-2, and B-3. Chairperson Moore asked 
if there was concern a trail would be put in between sidewalks on both sides 
because it was cheaper. Ms. Hair responded the wording requires the Town 
Manager’s approval as he already decides on sidewalks based on consistency. She 
advised if there were sidewalks on both sides, the Town Manager would likely 
require sidewalks and curb and gutter. Chairperson Moore asked Planning 
Commission if they are agreeable to the Town Manager making the decision as he 
currently does for other districts. Ms. Hair explained the Town Manger makes the 
decisions now relating to the specifics of the sidewalk. Chairperson Moore asked if 
there were sidewalks on both sides if the Town Manager would generally require 
sidewalks. Ms. Hair responded yes. Chairperson Moore clarified with the other 
Commissioners that there is an expectation on connecting sidewalks in that 
situation.  
 
Commissioner Hedrick stated it seemed too broad for a specific purpose and would 
like specific locations be presented to the Planning Commission before Town 
Manager approval. He questioned if trails would be appropriate in locations such as 
Wal-Mart and downtown businesses. Commissioner Powers questioned whether 
trails are appropriate in the B-2 Central Business District even if they are appropriate 
in the B-1 and B-3 Districts. Commissioner Powers suggested advertising the draft 
ordinance as is and changes can be made with the public hearing. Ms. Hair 
indicated yes and she will get more clarification from Barry or possibly have the 
Engineering Department speak about the trail extension.  
 
Commissioner Franusich commented it may not be appropriate for the Central 
Business District. He added he cannot think of a place where there are not 
sidewalks in the Central Business District or a place where there is space for a trail. 
Commissioner Dorsett arrived at 7:07 p.m.  Commissioner Dorsett replied a trail 
could be brought down College Street and have a rear entrance to the trail system. 
She advised a survey had been completed by Montgomery County when a trail 
system was being developed and it was recommended College Street be tied in with 
trails.  



March 11, 2013 Page 5 

 

Review of sidewalk requirements in B-3 – (continued). 
 
Commissioner Franusich asked if Commissioner Dorsett was referring to the library 
side of College Street and indicated only one small portion was zoned Central 
Business. Commissioner Dorsett asked if all of College Street was in the Central 
Business District. She indicated the sidewalks needed to be widened for accessibility 
due to the planters. Commissioner Franusich responded sidewalks are a necessity 
downtown but that a trail does not make sense.  
 
Chairperson Moore stated the ordinance will be left as is and advertised for the 
public hearing. After the public hearing the Planning Commission will vote on a 
recommendation to Town Council. He added there will be further discussion and 
expressed appreciation for the Development Subcommittee and the staff.  
 
Commissioner Dorsett asked if all of B-2 is Central Business. Ms. Hair responded 
yes. Commissioner Dorsett stated Cambria is Central Business and has few 
sidewalks.  Ms. Hair noted Cambria is zoned B-3.  
 
Ms. Hair reviewed the discussion regarding the Huckleberry Trail extension and 
consideration of trails for business districts. She added that the main issue is having 
an existing trail and also requiring the landowner to give property for a sidewalk. 
Chairperson Moore asked who would be responsible for snow removal and 
maintenance. Ms. Hair said the Town would be responsible since they maintained 
the Huckleberry now.  
 
Commission Franusich asked for confirmation that the developer pays for sidewalks 
in any new development. He asked who is responsible for the upkeep of sidewalks. 
Ms. Hair answered the homeowners would be responsible for snow removal and 
keeping them unobstructed and the Town usually repairs or replaces sidewalks. 
Chairperson Moore stated the developer would be responsible for their trail system 
and it would tie into the Huckleberry. Ms. Hair indicated yes.  
 
Commission Dorsett asked about the trail extension from the Recreation Center to 
downtown area. Ms. Hair answered there is a proposed connection all the way to the 
High School. She noted that is as far as it goes at this point but they are looking at 
other options. Ms. Hair added there is sidewalk on one side of N. Franklin Street 
which provides a natural tie to walking downtown.  Commissioner Franusich added 
to make sure that sidewalks be continued from adjoining properties. 
 

Work Session – Comprehensive Plan  
 

Chairperson Moore opened the discussion.  Commissioner Dorsett made a motion 
to go into work session regarding the Comprehensive Plan.  Commissioner Parsons 
seconded the motion which passed 9-0.   
 
Commissioner Carter made a motion to close the work session.  Commissioner 
Hedrick seconded the motion. Chairperson Moore asked for further discussion.  
 



March 11, 2013 Page 4 

 

Work Session – Comprehensive Plan – (continued). 
 
Commissioner Dorsett asked if the draft Government chapter of the Comprehensive 
Plan has been emailed to the Commissioners. Ms. Casper indicated no. 
Commissioner Dorsett asked Planning Commission to review the draft and send 
comments to Ms. Casper. Ms. Hair stated if the Commissioners cannot open PDFs 
to please let the staff know.  
 
With no further discussion, Chairperson Moore called for the vote to close work 
session. The motion passed 9-0. 

 
Other Business 
 

Chairperson Moore introduced other business. Chairperson Moore asked Ms. Hair 
for other business and she replied she had no other business for discussion.  
 
Commissioner Huppert explained the Town’s purchase of land was the biggest thing 
he has been involved with as a Councilman during his 10 years. He commented in 
January, the Town Council considered purchasing some property for a Town Park.  
Commissioner Powers noted the Town does not have a municipal park. 
Commissioner Huppert stated the Town purchased approximately 67 acres off of 
Route 114 behind Merchant’s Tire. He added two or three weeks ago the Town 
purchased this property for $2.5 million with the money coming from reserves.  
Commissioner Huppert added the Town is considering a series of different parks, 
green areas, and multipurpose fields that will be constructed over a period of time. 
He noted the convenience on how close the land was to the Huckleberry Trail. 
Commissioner Collins stated 67 acres was a lot of land for a park. Commissioner 
Huppert responded soccer fields and dog parks have been discussed. He also 
referred to a soccer complex in Martinsville which is very popular and brings a lot of 
tournaments. Mr. Huppert added the Town has restaurants and hotels for 
accommodation of these tournaments. Commissioner Dorsett asked if this was the 
property that backs up to Cambria Crossing and it is a nice piece of property. She 
stated comments from Comprehensive Plan surveys said the Town needed parks, 
playgrounds, picnic areas, dog parks but did not bring up ball fields. Commissioner 
Dorsett advised Commissioner Huppert to think of this during the planning process. 
Ms. Hair added the Parks and Recreation has contracted with the PDC to develop 
the Recreation Master Plan and Brad Epperly really wants to move forward with the 
plan and she is sure the design and development will come through that process. 
Commissioner Franusich asked if the Master Plan will come through the Planning 
Commission. Ms. Hair replied no but is sure it would have to be approved through a 
public process and if she gets a copy she will share with the Commissioners. 
Commissioner Dorsett stated the plan would have to come to the Planning 
Commission because the Town cannot build anything unless it’s included in the 
Capital budget. She also stated the plan should be included in the Recreation 
chapter of the Comprehensive Plan.  



March 11, 2013 Page 5 

 

Other Business – (continued). 
 
Commissioner Huppert discussed the progress on Depot Park. He stated the Town 
was hoping to get an arrangement worked out with Rosa Peters tied in but it does 
not look like that will work at this time. He added the Town has graded off the field 
and the field will be ready by this fall and the playground equipment is being 
upgraded. The Town is also working on a trail, which is ¾ completed. Commissioner 
Huppert stated the only problem is Kroger will be expanding so he is not sure how 
much land they will be using. He added in the spring, the Town crews will clean up 
the brush around the park to tie in the skate park and the Aquatic Center. 
Commissioner Collins added he thought the park was a great idea and how he has 
to take his grandson to Blacksburg now to enjoy a park. Commissioner Hedrick 
added living across the street from the property the Town has purchased will be a 
nice atmosphere to be a part of. Commissioner Huppert added the Depot Park has a 
small parking area that will be redone and will double the parking spaces and the 
Town will also install a major light.  
 
Commissioner Powers asked if any information can be provided on the Recreation 
Master Plan. Ms. Hair replied there is no information available at this point.   Ms. 
Hair stated the PDC sends out requests for projects to all localities and she had 
suggested to the Town Manager about some of the plans for the Master Plan at the 
Recreation Center and for the Cemetery. She added Mr. Brad Epperly met with 
Kevin Byrd and will be obtaining a contract. Ms. Hair said once the plan has started 
she can give the Commissioners more information. Commissioner Powers added 
that he would be interested to see if the Plan will include bikeways and walkways 
and will the plan tie into all the different parks. Ms. Hair stated she is not sure what 
will be included but once the Planning Commission reviews the Parks and 
Recreation chapter they could invite Mr. Epperly to discuss these items. 
Commissioner Powers stated the Town seems to be developing things along the 
Huckleberry Trail and added that other citizens are not convenient to these 
locations.  
 
Commissioner Dorsett asked it the Town will be purchasing the vacant lot that 
citizens have been using for a sandlot baseball field in Cambria section off of Murray 
Street. Commissioner Huppert said not at this time.  
 
Chairperson Moore asked if any other business needed discussing.   
 
 

There being no more business Chairperson Moore adjourned the meeting at 7:36 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Craig Moore, Chairperson    Nichole Hair, Secretary Non-Voting 



Cemetery Committee Recommendation to Council 

3/19/13 

 

Establishment of Cemetery Advisory Committee 

 Cemetery Advisory Committee to include no more than 6 voting, at‐large members.  Members 

must be residents of Christiansburg, own plots in Sunset Cemetery, or have family buried in 

Sunset Cemetery. 

 Advisory Committee will also include two, non‐voting members 

o Cemetery Manager will act as secretary and keep brief minutes 

o Member from the death care industry (representative from the in‐town funeral home) 

 Advisory Committee will include one liaison from Christiansburg Town Council 

 Three year terms; the first appointees would be for one, two or three years terms in order to 

have overlap of members. 

 Advisory only 

 Advisory Committee will meet quarterly or as needed. 

 



Christiansburg	Institute	Time,Material	Estimate

Position Rate per Hour Hours Cost

Operator $25.26 12 $307.56

2‐Truck Driver $51.26 12 $615.12

 2‐Labor $46.68 8 $373.44

Foreman $35.50 2 $71.00

Equipment Cost per hour Hours Cost

Dozer $24.79 6 $148.74

Excauater $32.64 6 $195.84

Tandem Dump Truck $24.79 12 $297.48

Description Price  Quanty Total Cost

Top Soil $70.00 3 $210.00

Grass seed  $70.00 50lb $70.00

Silt Fence  $25.00 500ft $125.00

Disposal

Tons Tipping Fee/per Ton Total Cost

101 $51.00 $5,151.00

Disposal Cost $5,151.00

Labor Cost $1,367.12

Equipment Cost $642.06

Material Cost $405.00

$7,565.18

Overall	Cost	Summary

Material	Cost

Equipment	Rate

Labor

Date:	3/5/2013



 

\     

 

 

Monthly Report:  February 2013 
Terry Caldwell, Director 

 Orientation of new employee Melissa Callahan, Facility Coordinator 

 Advisory Board meeting preparation 

 Shelter in Place workshop, Pulaski Train Station.  Completed requirements for Partner Agency Shelter Operations 

 Swim Gym fitness meetings and social 

 LOVE Works artwork placement meeting 

 Initial budget meeting with town management 

 Meeting with RU Marketing intern, completion of swim meet survey 

 Application submitted to Virginia Tourism for placement of CAC brochures at area welcome centers 

 In partnership with RU recreation students, organizing a skate park competition for April 27
th

 

 Organizing PPE documents for facility usage in all areas  

 

 

Allison Zuchowski, Aquatic Services Manager 

 Attended ARC Shelter Operation Workshop in Pulaski for emergency and disaster management 

 Facilitated CPR/FA/AED training for maintenance & custodial employees 

 Facilitated Lifeguard in-service meeting 

 Completed and reviewed over 40 evaluations with individual lifeguarding staff  

 Became a Professional Member of the National Parks & Recreational Association 

 Applied to become an AFO Instructor Candidate with the National Parks & Recreation Association 

http://images.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=nrpa&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&docid=Ot7_MNPZZU9yeM&tbnid=ltUja1YHkh9wpM:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://voicesforahealthysouthcoast.org/national-affiliates/&ei=9cU0UdrtK6bz0gGyvYBQ&psig=AFQjCNFZ4cocD7CK3tjHViUAzcKMhjqKew&ust=1362499429078622


Melissa Callahan, Facility Coordinator 

Prior Membership Monthly reports have been distributed by current, renewing memberships.  This report and future reports 

will reflect the memberships sold in the month of February.   

o Total Membership Sold: 108 

 Resident: 67 

 Non Resident: 41 

o Attendance:   

 Daily Resident Passes: 1,693 

 Daily Non-Resident Passes: 313 

 Dry Passes: 377 

 Member’s Scanned: 3,036 

 Rentals: $4,455.00 

o Learning the ropes here at the CAC 

o Lending a helpful hand to birthday orders for pizza, cakes, and Edible Arrangements orders and pickups.   

o Had 28 birthday parties in February. 

o Had 12 room rentals in February.   

o Birthday Parties, Room Rentals, Extras for Parties= $4,808.00 

o Interviewing for 2 party host and 1 front desk position 

o Working with Little Sinks.  Now  selling the Hokie towel at front desk 

o Put into effect the communication notebook at the front desk.   

o Creating and reviewing policies and procedures with the front desk staff 

o Goals for March 

1) Have St. Patrick’s day event, plan event, create flyer and disturbed to schools 

2) Have monthly meeting with front desk and party host staff. 

3) Organize and promote to OBGYN offices upcoming aquatic prenatal class.   

4) Rethink the birthday party concept and put into effect.   

 

 

 

 



Ethen Phillips, Aquatic Supervisor 
 Lifeguarding in-service meeting  

 Assisted with 15-20 Lifeguard Evaluations  

 Set-up for Region IV Champs, VT Invitational,VHSL Meet 

 

 

 

 

 

Stephanie Goens, Lifeguard Supervisor 

 Attended New Hire meeting  

 Provided positive reinforcements to all employees 

 Attended all weekly staff meetings 

 Helped conduct In-service training 

 Held partnership in evaluations of the entire lifeguard staff 

 Organized Employee Incentive Program 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Lauren Woodcock, Program Supervisor 

 Lessons Winter Session 3  80   

 Swim Gym    20   

 Ai Chi     2 + passes  

 Morning Fit    4 + passes  

 Warm Water Workout  9 + passes  

 Aqua Boot Camp   3 + passes  

 Aqua Zumba    1+ passes  

 Private lessons     8 unique members (15 uses)   

 Water fitness passes    27 unique members (114 uses)  

 Total participants for February  154(248) 

 

February Events 

 LTS Winter session 3 began February 25
th -

 M/W 1:15-2pm, T/TH 5:30-6:15pm 

 New Swim Gym program began February 25
th

 

 Taught lessons and aerobics 

 Covered guarding shifts 

 Recertified CPO 

 Community First Aid and CPR/AED for part time staff  

 Worked on summer program schedule 

 Updated big screen slides 

 

Upcoming March Events 

 Summer brochure to printer 

 LGT class March 28-30 

 March 2
nd

 last day of LTS Winter Session 2 (Sat am classes) 

 March 28
th

 last day of LTS Winter Session 3 

 March 16
th

 registration for LTS Spring Session 1 

 March 28
th

 registration for LTS Spring Session 2 

 

http://images.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=CPO&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&docid=Cc1rIBG_LFpeCM&tbnid=lGjkeb63w54MOM:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://www.cposeminars.com/&ei=MMY0UeD0EcqU0QHm4YHwCw&psig=AFQjCNGvEojKiHKwp9niNsWKxmcAS1TbFw&ust=1362499501557835


Bill Beecher, Competitive Coordinator 

 Setup and supervised the Region C High School swimming Championship (95 swimmers) 

 Setup and supervised Region IV High School swimming and Diving Championship (175 Swimmers and Divers) 

 Setup and supervised the Virginia Tech Invitational (175 Swimmers) 

 Setup and supervised the VHSL AA & A State swimming and Diving Championship (625 Swimmers) 

 Met and talked on phone with individuals about Age Group Champs and Sectionals 

 Met with Va. Tech officials about the Zone Diving Championship 

 Coached Masters 

 

 

Wayne Hunter, Maintenance Superintendent 
 Replaced relay P A C  unit  #3 

 Ice machine cleaned 

 Repaired tile on competition pool 

 Mark David Graham took C P O class 

 Replaced broken grates on pool deck 

 Replaced broken hooks in locker rooms 

 Installed new boiler pumps 

 Replaced broken board on call button on elevator 

 Rebuilt competition pool pump 

 Order new soc duct  P A C unit #1 

 Monthly exterminating 

 Ac  repaired lifeguard office 

 Trane install new gas valve on P A C unit #4 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Aquatic Center Revenue Report

February 2013 February 2012 YTD 2013 YTD 2012
Days of Operation 28 20 57 49

Facility Closed for Meets 0 9 0 9

Holiday Closings 0 0 2 2

*Meets Held (without Facility Closure) 4 2 *N/A *N/A

Memberships

Non-Resident Membership 41 32 95 86

Resident Membership 67 47 161 105

Total Memberships 108 79 256 191

Attendance

Daily Resident Pass 1,693 1,073 3,766 4,092

Daily Non-Resident Pass 313 369 610 862

Dry Pass 377 216 761 711

Member Scan 3,036 1,437 6,564 4,738

Programs, Rentals 1,318 1,371 2,113 1,842

Total Attendance 6,737 4,466 13,814 12,245

Daily Average 241 223 242 250

Revenue

Facility Revenue                            $5,133 $5,849 $15,167 $17,214

Daily Admission 8,268 5,027 18,551 16,523

Program Revenue 6,598 4,487 13,523 7,637

Retail Revenue 756 187 1,164 564

Food Concessions 121 149 121 168

Membership Revenue 7,364 7,972 17,672 21,138

Gift Certificates - - - 25

Competitive Meet Revenue 12,000 20,255 19,265 36,860

Refund - - - -

Over/Short - - - -

Total Revenue $40,240 $43,926 $85,463 $100,129

Birthday Parties 28 27 56 62

* Data not collected until March 2013


	Planning Commission Resolution - CUP -970 Radford Street - Hopper - 2013
	Planning Commission meeting minutes 03-11-13 - DRAFT
	Cemetery_Committee_Recommendation
	Christiansburg Institute TimeMaterial Charge
	CACFeb2013
	Aquatics Detailed Yearly Rev  Report Feb2013

